M. Leon Hutchens

Pr esi dent

Kaneb Pi pe Line Operating Partnership, L.P
100 N. Broadway, Suite 550

Wchita, KS 67203

Re: CPF No. 53509
Dear M. Hutchens:

Encl osed is the Final Order issued by the Associate

Adm nistrator for Pipeline Safety in the above-referenced case.
It makes findings of violation, assesses a civil penalty of
$10, 000, requires certain corrective action, and w thdraws

all egations of violation. The penalty paynent terns are set
forth in the Final Order. Your receipt of the Final O der
constitutes service of that docunent under 49 C.F.R § 190.5.

Si ncerely,

Gaendolyn M Hi I |

Pi pel i ne Conpliance Registry
Ofice of Pipeline Safety
Encl osure

CERTI FIED MAIL -- RETURN RECEI PT REQUESTED




DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON
RESEARCH AND SPECI AL PROGRAMS ADM NI STRATI ON
OFFI CE OF PI PELI NE SAFETY
WASHI NGTON, DC 20590

)
In the Matter of )

)
Kaneb Pi pe Line Operating ) CPF No. 53509
Partnership, L.P., )

)
Respondent . )

)

FI NAL ORDER

On August 31 and Septenber 17, 1993, pursuant to 49 U S. C

8 60117, a representative of the Ofice of Pipeline Safety
(OPS), conducted an on-site pipeline safety inspection of
Respondent’s facilities and records in Wchita, Kansas, and
Sinclair, Womng. As a result of the inspection, the
Director, Wstern Region, OPS, issued to Respondent, by letter
dat ed Novenber 29, 1993, a Notice of Probable Violation,
Proposed Civil Penalty, and Proposed Conpliance Order (Notice).
In accordance with 49 C.F. R § 190.207, the Notice proposed
finding that Respondent had conmtted violations of 49 C. F.R
Part 195 and proposed assessing a civil penalty of $23,000 for
the alleged violations. The Notice al so proposed that
Respondent take certain neasures to correct the alleged

vi ol ati ons.

Respondent responded to the Notice by letter dated Decenber 22,
1993, in which Respondent contested the violations.
Subsequently, by letter dated January 25, 1994, Respondent
requested a hearing, which was held on February 25, 1994.

FI NDI NGS OF VI OLATI ON

Deficiencies in Operations, Mintenance and Energency Manual - -

Violation of 49 CF.R § 195.402(c)(3)

Under 49 C F.R 8 195.402, each pipeline operator is required
to prepare and follow a manual of witten procedures for
conducting normal operations and mai nt enance activities and for
handl i ng abnormal operations and energencies. (“Q&M Manual ”).
Witten operating and mai nt enance procedures enhance public



safety by reducing the potential for a serious pipeline
accident. Witten energency procedures assure that operators
wi |l take appropriate action in the event of an energency and
take steps to mnimze any resulting damage.

Subsection 195.402(c)(3) requires that each O&%M Manual i ncl ude

procedures for operating, maintaining, and repairing the

pi peline systemin accordance with each of the subparts of Part
195. Item 1l of the Notice alleged that Respondent had viol ated
8§ 195.402(c)(3) by failing to establish required procedures as

fol |l ows:

1. Failure to establish procedures for placenent of |ine
mar kers, corrosion control, placenent of signs,
security of facilities, and pipeline repair -- Iltem

1(c), (d)(3), (h), (i), & (j)(1)

These al |l egations charged that Respondent’s O&M Manual | acked
procedures for conplying with the foll ow ng sections of
49 C.F.R Part 195:

88 195.410(a)(1) and 195.410(c) -- Placenent of line
markers [Item 1(c)];

8§ 195.416 -- External corrosion control [Item 1(d)(3)]
§ 195.434 --Placenment of signs [Item 1(h)];

§ 195.436 -- Security of facilities [Item1(i)]; and
8§ 195.226 -- Safe repair of pipelines [Item1(j)(1)].

Respondent has contested these allegations. Respondent has
mai ntai ned that its O&M Manual satisfies the regul atory

requi renents because it references and incorporates 49 C F. R
Part 195, stating “Part 195 is referenced and nade part of our
Q&M Manual , all supervisory personnel are charged with the
responsibility of being famliar with and understandi ng Part
195. [The subsection at issue] is well witten and easily
understood. We do not see the necessity of re-witing this

particul ar section for inclusion in our O&MJ Manual .” (Response
at pp. 2, 3, &4). In essence, Respondent has argued that
8§ 195.402(c)(3) -- at least as it applies to these allegations

-- requires only that the O%M Manual re-state the regul atory
requirenents.

Respondent’s argument is flawed because it neglects to account
for the how question. The argunent assunes that because the
&M Manual tells Respondent’s supervisory personnel that they
must conply with the regulatory requirenents, there is no need
to tell them how to conply.



Respondent’ s argunent is unpersuasive. The regulatory

requi renents are performance-based. Rather than telling
operators what to do, the regulations tell themwhat |evel of
safety to achieve. For exanple, 8 195.410 requires operators
to place and maintain |line markers over buried pipelines.
Subsection 8 195.410(a)(1) states,

Mar kers must be | ocated at each public road crossing,
at each railroad crossing, and in sufficient nunber
al ong the remai nder of each buried line so that its

| ocation is accurately known.

This | anguage tells operators that their pipelines nust be
marked with a “sufficient nunber” of markers, but the

regul ation leaves it to the operator to determ ne what
constitutes a sufficient nunber. The O&M Manual shoul d provide
supervi sory personnel with additional detail. For exanple, the
O&M Manual could require that markers be placed every “x”
nunber of feet or require that a certain nunber of markers be
pl aced along a line according to the type of area in which the
pi peline is |ocated.

There is trenmendous vari ati on between pipeline operators and

bet ween pipeline facilities. |In order for one set of
regul ations to be conprehensive in scope, it would have to be
quite lengthy and detailed. It would have to prescribe what

operating, maintenance and energency procedures are appropriate
for all conceivable scenarios. The performance-based

regul ations reject this approach. They tell operators what

| evel of safety nust be achieved but do not spell out all of
the steps necessary to get there. Thus, the pipeline safety
regul ations are not procedures that can be adopted “as is.”
Each operator should interpret the regulations as they apply to
its facilities and establish its own procedures in its Q&M
Manual .

Therefore, nmere incorporation of Part 195 into the O&M Manua
does not satisfy the regulatory requirenents. An operator may
not conply with the regulations sinply by restating them An
&M Manual nust establish in detail what operational,

mai nt enance and energency procedures a facility will follow in
order to achieve the m ninum safety requirenents.

2. Failure to establish wel ding procedures beyond
reference to Part 195 and an APl publication --
ltem 1(j)(2) & (3)

These al | egations charged that Respondent’s O%M Manual | acked
wel di ng procedures sufficient to satisfy 49 C.F. R 88 195. 226
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and 195.230. Respondent has contested these allegations on the
grounds that its O&M Manual references both Part 195 and API
Publication 1104 (“Wel ding of Pipelines and Rel ated
Facilities.”) As discussed above, reference to Part 195 does
not satisfy the regulatory requirenents. For simlar reasons,
reference to both Part 195 and the APl publication is

i nsufficient.

The API publication sets forth industry standards for wel ding
procedures. The publication is no substitute for an O8M
Manual . While it provides guidance, the publication does not
establish an operator’s procedures -- that is the O&%M Manual’s
role. The O&M Manual nust describe in detail what wel ding
procedures the operator will use in order to ensure that
unacceptable wel ds are repaired or renoved and that pipeline
repairs are perforned safely.

3. Failure to establish procedures for external corrosion
control -- Item1(d)(1) & (2)

These al |l egations charged that Respondent’s O&M Manual | acked
procedures for external corrosion control. Specifically, the
Manual all egedly | acked procedures for (1) nonitoring pipeline
casings to determ ne whether they are electrically isolated
fromthe carrier and the mtigating steps necessary if a casing
is determned to be shorted, and (2) consideration of |IR-drop
to determne the true polarized potential of the pipeline.

Respondent has contested these allegations on the ground that
it has engaged the services of an outside contractor to provide
cathodic protection for its pipelines. Respondent has

mai ntai ned that hiring a qualified contractor fulfills the
regul atory requirenents so that Respondent is not required to
establish its own procedures for external corrosion control.

Respondent’s interpretation of the regulations is incorrect.
Contracting with an outside vendor does not exenpt a pipeline
operator from conpliance with the pipeline safety regul ati ons.
Wi | e cathodi c protection may be perforned by a contractor, at
a mninmum the operator nust establish procedures that require
its contractor to satisfy the requirenments of 49 C F. R

8§ 195. 416.

4. Failure to establish procedures prohibiting the novenent
of pipeline absent precautionary neasures -- Item 1(f)

This all egation charged that Respondent’s O%M Manual | acked
procedures for the safe novenent of pipeline. Section 195.424
prohi bits operators from noving pipeline unless certain safety
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measures have been taken. Respondent contested this allegation
on the grounds that it has not been required to nove this |ine
and it has no foreseeable need to do so.

Respondent is incorrect in its interpretation of the

regul ations. The regulatory provision not only establishes

m ni mum requirenents for the safe novenent of pipeline but also
prohi bits pipeline novenent absent conpliance with this
subpart. Even if Respondent does not anticipate noving its
lines, its O%M Manual nust nonet hel ess contain a prohibition on
i ne novenent unless the regulatory safety requirenments have
been sati sfi ed.

5. Failure to establish procedures for the pressure testing
of steel pipes -- Item1(j)(4-7)

These al | egations charged that Respondent’s O&M Manual | acked
procedures for the pressure testing of steel pipelines required
by the foll ow ng sections:

8§ 195.302 -- testing of certain new or nodified
(“replaced, relocated, or otherw se changed”) pi pes;
8§ 195.304 -- testing of conponents;

8§ 195.306 -- test mediumrequirenents; and

§ 195.308 -- testing of tie-ins.

Respondent contested these allegations on the grounds that it
has not been necessary to nmake any nodifications to its

pi pelines such that hydrostatic testing would be required.

Thus, Respondent nai ntai ned, hydrostatic testing procedures are
not required until and unless events occur that would require
nodi fication to the pipeline.

Events that would require pressure testing cannot always be
anticipated. For exanple, should a rupture occur, the operator
woul d be required to conduct pressure testing on the

repl acenent pipe and its conponents. Each operator nust have
procedures for pressure testing sufficient to assure that the
testing will be done safely and effectively. However,
Respondent is correct that pressure testing procedures m ght
never actually be used because pressure testing m ght never be
required. An acceptable alternative would be a requirenent in
the operator’s procedures that pressure testing procedures be
devel oped before any pressure testing actually takes pl ace.

Accordingly, | find that Respondent violated 49 CF. R 8§
402(c)(3) substantially as alleged in the Notice, Iteml
sections ¢, d(1-3), f, h, i, andj (1-3). | also find that
Respondent violated this section by failing to have procedures



for conducting pressure testing or, alternatively, for

requi ring such procedures to be devel oped before pressure
testing. This is a nodification of the allegation of item 1(j)
(4-7).

Val ve Mai ntenance -- Violation of 49 CF. R § 195.420(b)

Item 8 of the Notice all eged that Respondent had viol ated 49
C.F.R 8 195.420(b) because, at the tinme of inspection, it
could not denonstrate that it had conducted all required val ve
i nspections. The regulation states, “Each operator shall, at
intervals not exceeding 7 Y2nonths, but at |east tw ce each

cal endar year, inspect each nmainline valve to determne that it
is functioning properly.”

According to the Notice, there are three mainline valves on the
Rawl i ns Diesel line: a valve imedi ately downstream of the
Sinclair punp (“Sinclair valve”), a valve at the Pioneer tie-in
(“Pioneer valve”), and a val ve just upstream of the Union
Pacific Meter (“Union Pacific valve”). Records supplied by
Respondent at the inspection indicate that Respondent was in
violation with respect to all three val ves.

In its Response, Respondent submtted supplenental information
docunenting that it had conpleted inspections of the Sinclair
val ve and the Union Pacific valve. Respondent admtted,
however, that it had failed to inspect the Pioneer valve. At
t he hearing, Respondent confirnmed this information.

Therefore, | withdraw the alleged violation as it relates to
the Sinclair and Union Pacific valves, and | find Respondent in
violation of 49 C.F. R 8 195.420(b) for its failure to inspect
t he Pi oneer val ve.

W THDRAWAL OF ALLEGATI ONS

Oper ati ons, Mi ntenance and Enmergency Manual -- Wthdrawal of
Alleged Violation of 49 CF. R 8 195.402(c)(3) [in part]

1. Procedures for training of personnel and supervisors --
Item 1(a)

The Notice alleged that the O&M Manual | acked procedures for
the training of personnel and supervisors as required by

49 C.F.R 8§ 195.403. In its Response, Respondent submtted
informati on denonstrating that it is using the WIlIlians
Conmput er Based Training Systemto train pipeline enpl oyees and
supervisors. At the hearing, Respondent agreed to nake



reference to this systemin its O%M Manual. Therefore, |
wi thdraw this allegation of violation.

2. Procedures for naintaining records -- Item 1(b)

The Notice alleged that the O&M Manual | acked procedures for
mai ntai ning records as required by 49 CF. R 8§ 195.404(c). In
its Response, Respondent submitted copies of its witten
procedures as they apply to this requirenent. Respondent al so
submtted a copy of its “Trunk Line Activity Report” form

whi ch Respondent contends further satisfies the regulatory
requirenent. At the hearing, Respondent stated that it would
incorporate the forminto its O%M Manual. Therefore,

wi thdraw this allegation of violation.

3. Procedures for internal corrosion control -- Item 1(e)

The Notice alleged that the O&M Manual | acked procedures for
internal corrosion control as required by 49 CF. R § 195.418.
In its Response, Respondent stated that the corrosive effects
of the diesel fuel that is run through the pipeline are
mnimal. In the absence of contrary evidence, | accept this
declaration to be true. The provisions of 8 195.418 apply only
to the transportation of corrosive substances. Therefore,

wi thdraw this allegation of violation.

4. Procedures for the safe operation of scraper and sphere
facilities -- Item 1(Q)

This all egation charged that Respondent had violated 49 C F. R
8 402(c)(3) because its O&M Manual | acked procedures requiring
the use of pressure relief devices at scraper and sphere
facilities as required by 49 CF. R § 195.426. 1Inits
Response, Respondent stated that it has not used its scraper
traps since it purchased the line in 1991. The facilities are
kept locked in order to prevent their accidental use. 1In the
absence of contrary evidence, | accept this declaration to be
true. Respondent stated that should it decide to use these
facilities in the future, it would first prepare witten
procedures. Therefore, | wthdraw this allegation of

vi ol ati on.

Desi gnation of pipeline facilities located in i medi ate
response areas -- Wthdrawal of Alleged Violation of 49 CF. R
8 402(c)(4)

Item 2 all eged that the O%M Manual | acked procedures for
determ ning which pipeline facilities are |located in areas that
woul d require an i medi ate response by the operator to prevent



hazards to the public if the facilities failed or

mal functioned. In its Response, Respondent subm tted copies of
its procedures that relate to this provision. The pipeline
facility transports nunber two fuel oil exclusively. Because
the line does not present a high level of risk, it has not been
included on the list of facilities that require i nmedi ate
response. Therefore, | withdraw this allegation of violation.

Procedures for checking variations fromnornal operation after
abnornal operation has ended -- Wthdrawal of Alleged Viol ation
of 49 C.F.R 8§ 402(c)(4)

Item 3 all eged that the O%M Manual | acked procedures for
checking variations fromnormal operation after abnorma
operation has ended at sufficient critical |ocations in the
system In its Response, Respondent submtted information
denonstrating that it was in conpliance with this provision at
the tinme of the inspection. Therefore, | wthdraw this

al l egation of violation.

Procedures for correcting variations fromnormal operations of
pressure and fl ow equi pnent controls -- Wthdrawal of All eged
Violation of 49 CF.R § 195.402(d)(3)

Item 4 alleged that the O%M Manual | acked procedures for
correcting variations fromnormal operation of pressure and
fl ow equi pnent and controls. In its Response, Respondent
submtted informati on denonstrating that it was in conpliance
with this provision at the tinme of inspection. Therefore,

wi thdraw this allegation of violation.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTY

Under 49 U S.C. 8§ 60122, Respondent is subject to a civil
penalty not to exceed $25,000 per violation for each day of the
violation up to a maxi mum of $500, 000 for any related series of
vi ol ati ons.

49 U.S.C. § 60122 and 49 CF.R 8§ 190.225 require that, in
determ ning the amount of the civil penalty, | consider the
followng criteria: nature, circunmstances, and gravity of the
vi ol ation, degree of Respondent’s cul pability, history of
Respondent’s prior offenses, Respondent’s ability to pay the
penalty, good faith by Respondent in attenpting to achieve
conpliance, the effect on Respondent’s ability to continue in
busi ness, and such other matters as justice may require.

The Notice proposed assessing a civil penalty of $23,000. This



penal ty amount should be reduced in light of the fact that
seven of the Notice's alleged violations have been w t hdrawn
and two of the counts of alleged violation in item 8 have al so
been wi t hdrawn.

I n assessing the penalty anount, it is proper to consider a
previ ous warni ng that Respondent received regarding its O%M
Manual . In a warning letter dated June 5, 1989, the Western
Regi onal Director, OPS, cited deficiencies in the O&M Manual
Specifically, the Director pointed out that recitation of the
regul ations in the O&M Manual does not satisfy the regul atory
requi renents and warned Respondent to nmake necessary
amendnents. Apparently, Respondent ignored this warning as, at
the tinme of the 1993 inspection, its O%M Manual still suffered
fromthese deficiencies.

Accordingly, having reviewed the record and considered the
assessnment criteria, | assess Respondent a civil penalty of
$10,000. | find that Respondent has the ability to pay the
penalty and that paynment will not inpact Respondent’s ability
to continue in business.

Payment of the civil penalty nust be made within 20 days of
service. Federal regulations (49 CF. R 8§ 89.21(b)(3)) require
this paynent be nmade by wire transfer, through the Federal
Reserve Commruni cations System (Fedwire), to the account of the
U S Treasury. Detailed instructions are contained in the

encl osure. After conpleting the wwre transfer, send a copy of
the electronic funds transfer receipt to the Ofice of the
Chi ef Counsel (DCC-1), Research and Speci al Prograns

Adm ni stration, Room 8507, U. S. Departnent of Transportation,
400 Seventh Street, S.W, Washington, D.C. 20590-0001.

Questions concerning wire transfers should be directed to:

Val eri a Dungee, Federal Aviation Adm nistration, M ke Monroney
Aeronautical Center, Financial Operations Division (AVZ-320),
P. O Box 25770, Cklahoma GCity, OK 73125; (405) 954-47109.

Failure to pay the $10,000 civil penalty will result in accrual
of interest at the current annual rate in accordance with 31
US C 8§ 3717, 4 CF.R § 102.13 and 49 CF.R § 89.23.
Pursuant to those sanme authorities, a late penalty charge of
six percent (6% per annumw || be charged if paynment is not
made within 110 days of service. Furthernore, failure to pay
the civil penalty may result in referral of the matter to the
Attorney Ceneral for appropriate action in United States
District Court.
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COVPLI ANCE ORDER

Under 49 U. S.C. § 60118(a), each person who engages in the
transportati on of hazardous |iquids or who owns or operates a
pipeline facility is required to conply with the applicable
safety standards established under chapter 601. Pursuant to
the authority of 49 U. S.C. 8§ 60118(b) and 49 C F.R 8§ 190. 217,
Respondent is hereby ordered to take the following actions to
ensure conpliance with the pipeline safety regul ations
applicable to its operations.

1. Est abli sh procedures providing for the placenent of line
markers as required by 49 CF. R 8 195.410(a)(1) & (c).

2. Establi sh procedures as required by 49 C F.R 8§ 195.416(a)
with regards to shorted casings --

a. for the nonitoring of casing potentials to detect the
presence of shorts, with nonitoring to take place at
| east once each cal endar year at intervals not
exceedi ng 15 nont hs;

b. for the determ nation of a course of action to
correct or negate the effects of casing shorts within
si x nonths of the discovery;

C. for verifying that a casing short exists;

d. for clearing the short, if practical (clearing nust
be consi dered before alternative neasures may be
used) ;

e. if clearing the short is inpractical, for filling the

casing/pipe interstice with high-dielectric casing
filler or other material that provides a corrosion-
i nhi biting environnent;

f. if filling the interstice is inpractical, for
monitoring the casing with | eak detection equi pnent
for | eakage at | east tw ce each cal endar year but at
intervals not to exceed 7 % nont hs;

g. providing that if a leak is found by nonitoring
casings with | eak detection equipnent, immediate
corrective action to elimnate the | eak and further
corrosion wll take place; and
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h. providing that in lieu of other corrective actions,
the condition of the carrier pipe will be nonitored
by using an internal inspection device at specified
i ntervals.

Est abl i sh procedures prohibiting the novenent of pipe
unless the line pressure is first |lowered as required by
49 C F. R 195.424.

Est abl i sh procedures for marking punp stations and
breakout tank areas with signs as required by 49 C F. R
8§ 195. 434.

Establi sh procedures for the security of facilities as
required by 49 C.F. R § 195.436.

Establi sh procedures for the safe repair or replacenent of
pipeline facilities as required by § 195.422,
specifically--

a. procedures prohibiting the welding of a ground to a
pipe or fitting that is being welded, as required by
49 C.F.R 8 195.226(c);

b. procedures for the repair or renoval of defective
wel ds, as required by 49 CF. R § 195.230; and

C. procedures for the nondestructive testing of welds,
as required by 49 CF. R 8§ 195.234;

Est abli sh procedures to require that, before the
conduct of any pressure testing required in operations
and nmai ntenance, the foll ow ng procedures are devel oped:

a. procedures for the hydrostatic testing of pipe that
has been relocated or replaced, as required by
§ 195. 302;

b. the hydrostatic testing of conponents, as required by

49 C. F.R § 195. 304,

C. the use of the correct test nmedium as required by 49
C.F.R § 195.306; and

d. the testing of tie-ins as required by 49 CF. R 8
195. 308.



12

8. When appropri ate procedures have been prepared, submt
copies to --

Director, Western Region

Ofice of Pipeline Safety

Research and Special Progranms Adm nistration
12600 W Col fax Avenue, Suite A250

Lakewood, CO 80215

9. The above itens shall be acconplished within 30 days
follow ng receipt of the Final Order. The Regi onal
Director may grant an extension of time upon receipt of a
witten request stating the reasons therefor, for
conpletion of any of the actions required herein.

WARNI NG | TEMS

The Notice did not propose a penalty with respect to itens 5,

6, and 7. Therefore, Respondent is warned that should it not

t ake appropriate corrective action and a violation cone to the
attention of OPS in a subsequent inspection, enforcenent action
w | be taken.

Under 49 C. F.R § 190. 215, Respondent has a right to petition
for reconsideration of this Final Order. The petition nust be
received within 20 days of Respondent’s receipt of the Final
Order and nust contain a brief statenent of the issue(s). The
filing of the petition automatically stays the paynent of any
civil penalty assessed. All other terns of the order,

i ncluding any required corrective action, shall remain in ful

ef fect unless the Associate Adm nistrator, upon request, grants
a stay. The terns and conditions of this Final Order are

ef fective upon receipt.

Failure to conply with this Final Order may result in the
assessnent of civil penalties of up to $25,000 per violation
per day, or in the referral of the case for judicial

enf or cenment .

/s/ R chard B. Fel der

Ri chard B. Fel der
Associ ate Adninistrator for
Pi pel i ne Safety

Dat e | ssued: 02/ 26/ 98
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